ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 20, 2005
8:14 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair

Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Hollis French

Senator G etchen Guess (via tel econference)

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 56
"An Act relating to crimnal law and procedure, crimna
sentences, and probation and parole; and providing for an
effective date."

MOVED CSSB 56(JUD) and letter of intent fromcomittee

SENATE BI LL NO. 19
"An Act relating to the creation of a civil legal services
fund."

MOVED CSSB 19(JUD) from conm ttee

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 56

SHORT TITLE: CRI M NAL LAW PROCEDURE/ SENTENCI NG
SPONSOR('s): SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

01/ 14/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 14/ 05 (S) JUD, FIN

01/ 18/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 18/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 18/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 19/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 19/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 19/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 20/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 19

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- January 20, 2005



SHORT TITLE: CIVIL LEGAL SERVI CES FUND
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) SEEKI NS

01/ 11/ 05 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 11/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 11/ 05 (S) JuD, FIN

01/ 19/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 19/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 19/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 20/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Linda WIson

Al aska Public Defender’s Ofice
Department of Adm nistration

900 W5'" Ave.

Anchorage, AK 99501-2090

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commrented on SB 56

Ms. Susan Parkes

Deputy Attorney Ceneral

Departnent of Law

310 K St.

Anchorage, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 56

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:34:42 AM Senators Therriault,
Huggi ns, French, and Chair Seekins were present. Senator Quess
was participating via teleconference. The conmttee took up SB
56.

SB 56- CRI M NAL LAW PROCEDURE/ SENTENCI NG

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to adopt version | as the working
docunent before the commttee. He explained that version |
contains three anendnents, on pages 2, 3, and 4, that the
comm ttee previously adopted.

CHAIR SEEKINS noted that w thout objection, version | was the
wor ki ng document before the conmttee.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he noticed that the effective date in
Section 34 is not until July 1 and suggested meking that date

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- January 20, 2005



sooner since this change woul d all ow people who are sentenced to
make chall enges. He then noved an imredi ate effective date that
woul d repl ace Section 34.

CHAI R SEEKINS noted that w thout objection, the effective date
woul d occur i nmedi ately upon passage into | aw.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to adopt the January 17, 2005 letter of
i ntent.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that wi thout objection, the January 17,
2005 letter of intent was adopted.

8:38: 38 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked for clarification of the amendnent
incorporated into version | on page 2, regarding the conposite
sentence of less than two years to serve. He said his intent was
to preserve a judge’'s ability to inpose a periodic sentence for
a two-year sentence, since that is the benchmark for a second C
fel ony. He suggested changing “of less” to “no nore” so that it
woul d stop at two years.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if he was suggesting |anguage that says two
years or |ess.

SENATOR FRENCH said it should say two years or less or no nore
than two years to serve.

SENATOR THERRI AULT urged Senator French to nobve a conceptual
anmendnent and |eave the appropriate |anguage up to the |[egal
drafter.

SENATOR FRENCH agreed and said the idea is that the “gate” for a
periodic sentence will slam shut at two years and not at two
years and one day.

8:40: 09 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS noted that wthout objection, that conceptual
anendnent woul d be adopted as Amendnent 5.

8:40: 36 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if M. Rogers from Fairbanks wanted to
testify; however she was not available at this tinme. He then

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- January 20, 2005



asked if anyone had any nore proposed anendnents. There were
none.

CHAIR SEEKI NS directed the discussion to the fiscal notes.
8:42: 29 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS poi nted out the commttee had some discussion with
menbers of the Public Defender’s Ofice that a zero fiscal note
would be inappropriate because of possible constitutiona
challenges. He said that although he thought the conmttee
di scussed that topic in depth and decided that no constitutional
problens existed, he would like M. WIson to address that
t opi c.

IVB. LI NDA W LSON, Deputy Director of the Alaska Public
Def ender’s O fice, explained that Departnent of Law (DOL) staff
testified that no constitutional violation exists, but that is
the departnent’s opinion and it will not prevent challenges. The
court wll decide whether or not this remedy is constitutional
The Al aska Public Defender’s Ofice represents clients who nake
those challenges and it believes that challenges w Il happen.
The challenges will likely be to the right to a grand jury on
aggravators, as well as to equal protection for a disparity
within the range. She believes there will be nore jury trials on
the aggravators and predicted there will be nore sentences wth
probationary tine.

8:46: 03 AM

M5. WLSON felt the sentence within the range will encourage a
judge to give probation tinme. She believes that if nore people
are put on probation, nore probation violations will occur. That
will create nore petitions to revoke probation. Because the

public defender’s agency represents the bulk of those clients,
she expects to see an increase in those types of cases. She al so
felt there will be challenges to the portion of the bill that
elimnate sonme of the prior conviction-based aggravators from a
right to a jury trial. She noted that was Section 21 in the
first draft of the bill. Sone will require additional facts that
need to be proved to a jury beyond a reasonabl e doubt.

8:48: 16 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that any piece of legislation carries a

potential cost to state governnent and pointed out, as an
exanple, that a bill could trigger the need to redraft

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- January 20, 2005



regul ations that could be challenged. However, those costs don't
trigger a fiscal note because that is the cost of doing
busi ness. Regardi ng probation, the Department of Corrections has
said it is unable to predict with any accuracy the future action
of judges. He said his understanding of an indeterm nate fisca
note is one in which a departnent is sure the piece of
| egislation wll have associated costs but those costs cannot be
gquantified. He said that nost of what has been enunerated in the
fiscal notes is very speculative and that he strongly disagrees
with this fiscal note.

8:50: 37 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS said it has not been his policy to speculate the
cost of a possible challenge and put that into a fiscal note. He
noted that nmany of the bills that have passed out of the Senate
Judiciary Comm ttee m ght be chall enged.

8:51:26 AM

SENATOR FRENCH pointed out that the bill authorizes |onger
sentences. He woul d expect the DOL to argue for |onger sentences
in appropriate cases and for |onger sentences to be inposed. He
said the strongest argument in favor of an indeterm nate fisca
note would be that |onger sentences would be inposed under this
bill.

8:51:58 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS said he didn't necessarily disagree. He was a
negotiator for 35 years, and if he was negotiating on the cost
of something and knew it could cost nore if he didn't negotiate
hard for a |ower cost, he would negotiate harder. He said it is
possible the opposite could be argued in terns of attorney
negotiations for a plea bargain because it could reduce the cost
to the parties. He said that is why he proposed the zero fisca
note fromthe Senate Judiciary Commttee; he would |like to adopt
that fiscal note if the commttee goes forward with the bill

8:53:18 AM

SENATOR GUESS said her observation matches Senator French's in
that mathematically, if the baseline remains the sane but the
upper range is expanded, the average sentence is likely to be
| onger; therefore an inpact on the Departnent of Corrections is
likely. She noted she had not considered the plea bargaining
aspect.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- January 20, 2005



SENATOR THERRI AULT said according to the recent court decision

an expense will be associated with triggering aggravators. This
| egi slation inposes ranges so a judge, in order to inpose a
| onger sentence, has a range. If the judge lives within that
range, he won't have to trigger additional jury action. He said
no one knows whether that would be enough to offset what m ght
have been a higher range reached with aggravators. He said one
must |l ook at striking a balance and noted the current court
cases have triggered actions that will cost; SB 56 is attenpt to
mtigate those costs.

8:55: 07 AM

SENATOR GUESS asked if Senator Therriault was saying that a zero
sum gain is likely because sone departnent mnay see increases
whi l e others see decreases.

SENATOR THERRI AULT agreed but said the sanme argunent can be nade
for each departnent. He explained that if the court had to go
through a jury for an aggravator to get a |longer sentence, the
publ i ¢ defender and the prosecutor woul d have additional costs.

8:55: 54 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT then said, “So it is how we balance the
scales in totality but you also have the sanme argunment going on
with each individual player in the system too and have the
scal es remai ned bal anced within their own departnent?”

8:.56: 14 AM

SENATOR GUESS asked if that would be the case with DOC as wel | .

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that Ms. Parker could speak to the two
zero fiscal notes from DOC

8:57:02 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS said he was not willing to say that just because
judges will be allowed to use a wider range, they wll give
i nappropriate sentences. He thought the judicial branch

understands the necessity of fitting the punishnment to the crine
and of the fiscal situation of Al aska.

SENATOR THERRI AULT pointed out that the commttee also adopted
the letter of intent, which tells the court that the |egislature

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- January 20, 2005



does not expect a junp across the board of |onger sentences. He
noted that the conmmttee has also heard testinony that m ninmum
sentences are too high and the judiciary would like to nake
those smal |l er.

8:58: 40 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said he likes the bill - his concern is only
about the fiscal note and is from his personal experience. He
believes that reality dictates increased costs from | onger jai
ternmns.

CHAIR SEEKINS said the intent is to give judges the authority to
nete out an appropriate sentence with an appropriate anount of
probati on supervi sion.

9:00: 07 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to adopt the Senate Judiciary Commttee
fiscal note for the public defender’s office.

CHAIR SEEKINS announced that wthout objection, the notion
carried.

9:00: 34 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT nobved CSSB 56(JUD) from committee with the
five zero fiscal notes and letter of intent.

SENATOR FRENCH objected and said that after re-reading the
Bl akel y decision, he does not believe it requires the ranges
al t hough he believes that providing for a range in sentencing is
a good solution. He asked whether DOL believes that the Bl akely
deci sion requires ranges.

9:01: 38 AM

M5. SUSAN PARKES, Deputy Attorney General, Departnment of Law,
said the Blakely decision does not require this particular
solution. DOL discussed many options with |egislators, one being
to inpose high sentences and nmitigate down. DOL was | ooking for
a balance within the | egal constraints of Bl akely.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if this legislation was nodeled after
| egi sl ati on adopted by the Kansas | egisl ature.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- January 20, 2005



M5. PARKES said it is simlar to the Kansas nodel. She attended
a sem nar about sentencing during which a presentation about
Kansas was given. Kansas was the only state that had gone to
jury findings of aggravators but it has sentencing ranges |ike
those in SB 56.

9: 03: 13 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if any objection to passing CSSB 56(JUD)
from conmttee was maintained. Wth no further objection, CHAIR
SEEKI NS announced the notion carried. He then announced a brief
recess.

SB 19-ClVIL LEGAL SERVI CES FUND

9:11:41 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS called the neeting back to order and noted that a
commttee substitute had been distributed to nenbers, | abeled
version G He noted that wthout objection, version G was
adopted as the working docunent before the commttee. He then
explained that the conmmittee was |ooking at the definition of a
| ow-i nconme individual yesterday. He pointed to the bottom of
version G and said the definition refers to an individual wth
an inconme equal to or less than the nmaxi mum incone |evels for
Alaska determined by the Legal Services Corporation. I t
references 42USC 2996(b). He indicated the commttee has not
| ooked at an effective date, nor did it address how funds would
be distributed, as that can be done in the Senate Finance
Committee.

9:13: 25 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS asked if version G creates a nechani sm that does
not meke it mandatory for funding or inply that it nust be
f unded.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that is correct; it establishes that 50
percent of receipts from punitive damages that go to the state
can be used.

9:13: 59 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT did not think the bill needed an inmedi ate
effective date. He asked that Chair Seekins work with the co-

chairs of the finance conmmttee to nmake sure the |anguage is
broad enough to say that any dollar anpbunt comng in from the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- January 20, 2005



punitive damage settlenents wll be set aside into this fund. He
did not anticipate the fund to be used as a funding source in FY
06, but rather that the noney be collected during FY 06 and used
in FY 07.

9:15: 13 AM

SENATOR FRENCH pointed to a technical correction that needs to
be made by putting parentheses around the letter “b”.

CHAI R SEEKI NS agr eed.
9:15:49 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved CSSB 19(JUD), version G from conmttee
wi th individual recomendati ons.

CHAIR SEEKINS announced that wthout objection, the notion
carried.

9:16: 12 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that the Departnent of Law would give a
review to the commttee on Tuesday and that he was working with
Senator Dyson to see if his legislation on the constitutional
amendnent for a spending |limt would be ready to be heard on
Wednesday. He then adjourned the neeting.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- January 20, 2005



